MINUTES

INDIAN LAKE BOROUGH MEETING
AUGUST 8, 2007

The regularly scheduled meeting of the Indian Lake Borough Council was held on August 8, 2007 at 7:00 P.M. at the Indian Lake Borough Building.
THOSE PRESENT:



THOSE ABSENT:
Terry L. St. Clair, Council President

 
Michael D. Miscoe





Charles McCauley
P. Scott Moore





John Walters
Bryan Bozovich
Patricia Dewar

Barry S. Lichty, Mayor

Daniel W. Rullo, Solicitor

Theresa L. Weyant, Borough Manager
Harry Huzsek, Superintendent

Dean Snyder, Zoning Officer

Visitors – Joe Bucks, James Lyons, Ronald Petrina, Sandy Upor, Mark Griffith, Richard Stern, Al Diehl, Jeff Griffith, Cindy Griffith, Pete Nychis, Tiffany Wright, Charles A. Fox, Robert Vogel, Robert Weitzel, Bill Hollern, Kathleen Moore, Bill Carney, Paul Cornez, and Michael Zubasic.
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 P.M. by Terry L. St. Clair, Council President.
ORDER OF BUSINESS

1.
Approve the Minutes of the Meetings held on May 23rd and June 13, 2007 - St. Clair asked for additions and/or corrections.  There being none, Dewar moved and Miscoe seconded to approve the minutes as submitted.  All ayes, motion carried.

 2.
Financial Reports – Manager reviewed the Income & Expense Report, the Budget Report and the List of Bills for July 31, 2007.  Manager would like to add the following additional outstanding bills to the List of Bills Report:  Somerset Rural Electric, security lights, in the amount of $107.25;  :  Somerset Rural Electric, security light Indian Lake Drive, in the amount of $16.43; Somerset Legal Journal, notice of adoption of ordinance for the articles of incorporation of Indian Lake General Authority, in the amount of $146.30; and Aquatic Environment Consultants, Vallisneria weed treatment, in the amount of $22,113.48.  Miscoe made a motion to approve the Borough’s Financial Reports, including the amendments to the List of Bills Report.  Dewar seconded the motion.  All ayes, motion carried.

Manager reviewed the Water Works Income & Expense Report and the List of Bills for July 31, 2007.  Miscoe made a motion to approve the Water Work’s Financial Reports as presented.  Bozovich seconded the motion.  All ayes, motion carried.


Manager reviewed the Sewer Plant Financial Reports and the List of Bills of July 31, 2007.  Miscoe made a motion to approve the Sewer Plant Financial Reports as submitted.  Bozovich seconded the motion.  All ayes, motion carried.


Manager reviewed the Summary of Account Balance Report for July 31, 2007.  Miscoe made a motion to approve the Summary of Account Balance Report for July 31, 2007.  Bozovich seconded the motion.  All ayes, motion carried.
3.
Welcome Visitors - Joe Bucks, James Lyons, Ronald Petrina, Sandy Upor, Mark Griffith, Richard Stern, Al Diehl, Jeff Griffith, Cindy Griffith, Pete Nychis, Tiffany Wright, Charles A. Fox, Robert Vogel, Robert Weitzel, Bill Hollern, Kathleen Moore, Bill Carney, Paul Cornez, and Michael Zubasic.
4.
Christopher Brewer, Thorp Reed & Armstrong – General Obligation Bond

Each member of Council was provided with the latest proposals from Somerset Trust Company, First National Bank of Pennsylvania, and PNC Bank to provide financing for Phase 1 of the dam remediation work.


Miscoe made a motion to accept the proposal from PNC Bank, Option 2, which is a fixed interest rate set at 4.19% through the maturity date of the note and to adopt the Ordinance enacting the General Obligation Note of $600,000.00.  Dewar seconded the motion.  All ayes, motion carried.

Miscoe made a motion to accept the General Obligation Bond Insurance Commitment proposal from Radian Asset Assurance, Inc. and to authorize the Council President to sign the necessary documents.   Dewar seconded the motion.  All ayes, motion carried.
5.
Public Comment – None.
6.
Hearing on the Board’s Intention to Remove Jeff Griffith from the Indian Lake Borough Planning Commission.  Copy of full transcript is on file at the Borough Office.

Peter Nychis was legal counsel for Jeff Griffith.
This is a public hearing that has been requested by Jeff Griffith relative to inquiries of his continued ability to stay on the Planning Commission.  Mr. Griffith has requested that this be an open hearing as opposed to a closed hearing.

Attorney Rullo - According to Section 206 of the Municipalities Planning Code – Removal of any member of a planning commission once qualified and appointed may be removed from office for malfeasance, misfeasance or nonfeasance in office, or for other just cause by a majority vote of the governing body taken after the member has received 15 days’ advance notice of the intent to take such a vote.  A hearing shall be held in connection with the vote if the member shall request it in writing.  Any appointment to fill a vacancy created by removal shall be only for the unexpired term.

On December 15, 2006, Mr. Griffith was sent a letter from Attorney Rullo providing him with notification that members of Council have expressed concern that he hadn’t been attentive to his responsibilities as an appointed member of the Planning Commission.  The last meeting that Mr. Griffith had attended was in August of 2006.  The letter inquired as to whether or not he wished to continue to serve as others have expressed a desire to fill a vacancy in the event it occurs.  The Borough appreciated the service that he had provided in the past, however, there needs to be an active participation in these meetings.  Mr. Griffith was to advise the Borough Secretary if it was his desire to continue to serve in the capacity as a member of the Planning Commission.  In the event he could not attend to these responsibilities, he was asked to submit a resignation.  It was the desire of the Borough Council to have him continue to serve in this role so long as he was willing to provide the time and attention to the responsibility of his office.  A copy of the letter was entered into the record as Exhibit 1.


Mr. Griffith responded that he would prefer not to resign, that he would continue to tend to the responsibilities of the Planning Commission.


The next communication was a letter dated July 13, 2007 and sent by Certified Mail and the green return receipt card indicated receipt on July 16, 2007.  The letter stated the following:  Attorney Rullo had corresponded with him and indicated that members of the Borough Council had expressed a concern that he had not been attentive to his responsibilities as an appointed member of the Planning Commission.  At that time, Attorney Rullo had inquired as to whether or not Mr. Griffith wished to continue to serve and if he could not attend to his responsibilities that he should submit a resignation.  Mr. Griffith had indicated to the Borough Manager that it was his desire to continue to serve.  Despite that representation, Mr. Griffith has been absent for three official meetings, and, in fact, his failure to attend has also on occasion caused other meetings to be canceled for lack of a quorum.  This letter advised Mr. Griffith that he may be removed from office by a majority vote of the Borough Council as a result of his failure to attend the meetings and actively participate in the planning process.  Attorney Rullo was authorized to submit to Mr. Griffith the appropriate notice indicated that Council by majority vote may remove you from office at a regularly scheduled meeting more than 15 days from the receipt of this letter.  If Mr. Griffith would like to request a hearing to be held in conjunction with the vote, he should provide that request to Attorney Rullo in writing, or submit his resignation.  A copy of the letter was entered into the record as Exhibit 2.

A letter dated on July 23, 2007 was received from Mr. Griffith requesting a hearing.  A copy of the letter was entered into the record as Exhibit 3.


A letter dated July 27, 2007 was sent to Mr. Griffith acknowledging receipt of his July 23, 2007 letter requesting a hearing on the Board’s intention to remove him from office for his failure to attend to the responsibilities as an appointed member of the Planning Commission.  Mr. Griffith was advised that the hearing shall be scheduled for August 8, 2007 during the course of the regularly scheduled meeting of the Indian Lake Borough commencing at 7:00 P.M.  This meeting will be held in open session unless Mr. Griffith requests that the testimony portion of the hearing be held in executive session.  Any vote taken relative to this hearing, however, must be done in open session.  A copy of the letter was entered into the record as Exhibit 4.


Mayor Lichty – Unfortunately, this is a sad day that the Indian Lake Borough Council has to respond to a situation where we have someone on one of the commissions that is not attending the meetings the way he was told or asked to.  I was the one who recommended Jeff to be placed on the Planning Commission because I felt at that time that he would be a positive force and I even explained to him, prior to recommending him that he would have to attend monthly meetings.  I assumed that he was following through with that and when all this started to come to light, I was rather disappointed.  

Mayor Lichty - You were appointed on December 8, 2004 and your first meeting was January 10, 2005.  That is about 30 months since you have been appointed.  You have missed 11 meetings and there have been 6 meetings that had to be cancelled due to a lack of quorum.  Unfortunately, there isn’t a record of who attended or who didn’t show up or why the meetings were cancelled.
Mayor Lichty – If we can not count on the members who serve on the Planning Commission, the Zoning Hearing Board, and the General Authority to attend the meetings and to give the input and the support to their fellow members as well as the community, than we need to look for someone else who is willing to do that and there have been several people who have volunteered to serve on these committees.

Mayor Lichty – The first question that I would like to ask is what defense do you have in missing the 11 meetings and maybe the additional ones that were missed due to the lack of quorum?

Jeff Griffith – After I received the first letter, I had a problem with making the 3:30 meetings.  It was difficult for me to meet at that time.  I requested a time change if that was possible and that was not.  Since that letter, I disagree that I missed 3 meetings.  I have missed 2 and for good reason.  The first one was due to the fact that I had a water line break at Hillcrest and I had 300 people without water.  The second one I had a doctors appointment.  The 2 no quorum meetings, I was here.


Mayor Lichty – Why didn’t you call and report that you weren’t going to be there?  That is one of the stipulations in the code.


Jeff Griffith –I was unaware that I was suppose to call and report that I wasn’t going to be there.  That was never brought up by anyone.


Mayor Lichty – You never see the day that a Council Meeting is cancelled due to a lack of quorum.  Whenever someone is not going to be at a meeting, they will call Theresa and we make certain that a quorum is here.


Peter Nychis – You stated that there was no record as to who was there and who was not there to cause a lack of quorum.  You can not make the assumption that Mr. Griffith was not there because you have no record.

Mayor Lichty – We are not doing that.


Attorney Rullo identified the meetings that were missed by Mr. Griffith:



February 14, 2005



May 9, 2005



July 11, 2005



August 8, 2005



November 14, 2005



June 12, 2006



September 11, 2006



November 13, 2006



January 8, 2007



June 11, 2007



July 9, 2007



This will be entered into the record as Exhibit 5.


Jeff Griffith – That is incorrect.


Michael Miscoe – There is an apparent dispute, what was the source for this data?


Theresa Weyant – The official minute book.


Jeff Griffith – July 9th meeting, I wasn’t here?


Theresa Weyant – The meeting opened and adjourned.


Jeff Griffith – I was sitting in the outer office.  
Theresa Weyant – You were sitting out there, you weren’t in the meeting.

Jeff Griffith - The door was closed and I didn’t interrupt.


Theresa Weyant – No, the door wasn’t closed.


Jeff Griffith – Yes it was and you said you would mark me as here.  3:31 you came out and said the meeting was over.  I said I assume we are having a meeting and you said it’s over.  I asked you what time it was and you said 3:31 and I am listed as not being there.  That is wrong.


Attorney Rullo – What were the reasons for missing the January 8th and the June 11th meetings?


Jeff Griffith – The January 8th meeting was the waterline break at Hillcrest and my wife called.  The June 11th meeting I had a doctor’s appointment and no I did not call.


Attorney Rullo – The February 12th meeting was cancelled due to a lack of quorum, were you here?


Jeff Griffith – Yes.  John Walters and I were here.


Attorney Rullo – The March 12th meeting was cancelled due to a lack of quorum, were you here?


Jeff Griffith – I believe so.  I can’t recall who else was there though.


Attorney Rullo – The July 9th meeting you are listed as absent but you claim that you were here?


Jeff Griffith – Yes.


John Walters – On March 12th the only ones there were Bob Weitzel and I.


Jeff Griffith – I can’t recall that, I believe that I was there.


Attorney Rullo – Who did you ask to have the meeting times changed?


Jeff Griffith – Theresa and that was brought up at the January 8th meeting.


Attorney Rullo – What was the result of your request to change the time?


Theresa Weyant – At that time, the Planning Commission did not want to change their meeting times.


Jeff Griffith – I than changed my schedule around so that I could make it at 3:30.  This was difficult because it wasn’t just only me but other people who work with me.

Bryan Bozovich – So in January, you changed your schedule around?


Jeff Griffith – Yes.  So I could attend those meetings.  The doctor’s appointment, to be honest with you, was forgotten about because it was made so long ago.  Did I call?  No.


Attorney Rullo – Are the meetings held monthly?


Jeff Griffith – Yes.


Barry Lichty – If you can’t make the meetings, why don’t you just resign and let someone else who can make the meetings?


Jeff Griffith – I can make the meetings now.  I just had some issues and I am not the only one missing two or three meetings.


Barry Lichty – I know and Attorney Rullo has sent a letter to the other member who has missed quite a few meetings.


Jeff Griffith – I have changed my schedule to accommodate and I intend to be there if humanly possible.  Before, you are right, I missed a lot but after I received the letter in December, no, things had to change.


Barry Lichty – Do you understand Council’s position on this?


Jeff Griffith – Absolutely.


Barry Lichty – We need someone that will represent the Borough and the Planning Commission function is an important function.  We can not have someone who is not going to be a permanent fixture on there.

Jeff Griffith – Even though I did miss several of these meetings, no business was discussed.


Barry Lichty – But you don’t know that until you come.


Jeff Griffith – Well we don’t get an agenda.  I have not held up any business by these 2 meetings that I have missed.


Attorney Rullo – What assurance can you give Council that you are able to attend these meetings?


Michael Miscoe – The concern is that from 2005 thru 2006 there were a pretty substantial number of missed meetings.  Council had asked for some assurances and you gave it and it seems that you are still only hitting about 50 percent.

Jeff Griffith – No.  You can’t say that.  That is your opinion. 

Michael Miscoe – That is my opinion based upon what I have heard so far.  That wasn’t the kind of assurances that I thought we were given.

Barry Lichty – Did I not tell you that you had to attend monthly meetings when I first asked you if you would be interested in serving.

Jeff Griffith – 3:30 meetings became a problem, that was the issue.  Now I have changed those things, and it took some time to get that changed because there were other people’s schedules involved also.

Barry Lichty – That is one of the most important functions of an elected or appointed official of the Borough is to make the meetings.

Jeff Griffith – Before the December 15th letter, my attendance was poor and I can’t argue that with you.

Michael Miscoe – You have been on the Planning Commission for about 2 ½ years and you have missed about a year’s worth of meetings.

Jeff Griffith – Yes.  The vast majority was before that letter.

Attorney Rullo – What is Mr. Griffith’s term?
Attorney Peter Nychis – I would like to ask the Mayor a couple of questions.

Attorney Peter Nychis – To your knowledge, is there any type of an established policy regarding the removal from office of a Planning Commission or Zoning Board member as to what point you say enough is enough?  Do you have any policy regarding the removal?
Barry Lichty – Yes.  It is in the Municipal Planning Code.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Does the Borough have an established policy regarding the removal?

Barry Lichty – We have even over the years sent Councilmen letters stating that they were required to do that.  This is not a unique situation where we are picking on one particular person.  All we are asking for is to have someone serve in a capacity on a regular basis.

Attorney Peter Nychis – I understand that and you have asked that through the letter from your solicitor on December 15, 2006 correct?

Barry Lichty - Right.


Attorney Peter Nychis – Since that time, according to your summary of records whatever is contained in the Borough records is that he has missed 2 meetings since that time, correct?


Barry Lichty – Yes, 


Attorney Peter Nychis – And he has told you the reasons for missing them.  First there was an emergency that he had to attend to because of a waterline break.  The second was because of a doctor’s appointment correct?


Barry Lichty – Okay


Attorney Peter Nychis – Since you seem to know so much about the records, have you looked at the attendance of other Planning Commission members?


Barry Lichty – Yes I have.


Attorney Peter Nychis – What is the attendance records of the others?


Barry Lichty – Our solicitor sent a letter to one of the other members at the same time that Mr. Griffith’s went out.


Attorney Peter Nychis – That is not my question.  What is the attendance record of the other planning commission members?


Barry Lichty – I can’t answer that.


Attorney Peter Nychis – You don’t know.
Barry Lichty – That’s right.

Attorney Peter Nychis – To the best of your knowledge, have others missed as many or more meetings in 2007 than Mr. Griffith?
Barry Lichty – Not to my knowledge.

Attorney Peter Nychis – You have no such knowledge?
Barry Lichty – I do not.

Attorney Peter Nychis – I assume that the Borough records are kept by the Borough Secretary?

Barry Lichty – Yes.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Do you know the attendance records of the Zoning Hearing Board members?

Barry Lichty – Yes.

Attorney Peter Nychis – What has been the attendance of those people?

Barry Lichty – they have been very prompt and regular.  When we have a Zoning Hearing Board Hearing, we have people here that are coming to testify, and if one of them doesn’t show up than we don’t have a quorum.  We do have an alternate that fills in, so if one of them can not appear than they will call Theresa and she will have the alternate attend.
Attorney Peter Nychis – Do you make it a point to attend all the scheduled Planning Commission meetings?

Barry Lichty – No.

Attorney Peter Nychis – So you are not present?

Barry Lichty – Rarely.

Attorney Peter Nychis – So you don’t know who was there or what business, if any, was scheduled or brought before the Planning Commission at any one of those meetings?
Barry Lichty – No.

Attorney Peter Nychis – So, during the 2 meetings that he missed you can’t tell us as to whether or not there was any business to be brought before the Planning Commission?
Barry Lichty – To me, that is immaterial.

Attorney Peter Nychis – That is not my question.

Barry Lichty – That is my answer.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Did his absence cause any interruption in the business of the Planning Commission during those 2 meetings that he missed, to your knowledge?
Barry Lichty – Not to my knowledge, no.

Attorney Peter Nychis – So you can’t say whether there was in fact anything scheduled before the Planning Commission during those 2 meetings?

Barry Lichty – No.

Attorney Peter Nychis – According to what I have heard so far, usually those meetings only lasted for about a minute.  Long enough to take roll call and move to adjourn the meeting.  Is that your understanding?
Barry Lichty – I can’t respond to that.  I have no idea how long their meetings take.  The meetings that I have been to have been a lot longer than that.

Attorney Peter Nychis – When was the last time that you attended a Planning Commission meeting?

Barry Lichty - Probably April of 2006.

Attorney Peter Nychis – More than a year ago?

Barry Lichty – Sure.  My function is not to actually meet with the Planning Commission.

Attorney Peter Nychis – I understand.  What was before the Planning Commission at that time?
Barry Lichty – There was a development that was being proposed that I was supporting.
Attorney Peter Nychis – It is my understanding that Mr. Griffith was in attendance at that meeting, correct?

Barry Lichty – Yes he was.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Any other time when there was business scheduled before the Planning Commission, that you attended or submission to the Planning Commission for approval for consideration or approval?
Barry Lichty – A number of years ago, I attended a couple of the Planning Commission meetings.  As I recall it had to deal with an ordinance change or something like that.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Mr. Griffith was not on the Planning Commission at that time?

Barry Lichty – No.

Attorney Peter Nychis – My concern Mr. Mayor is a couple of things.  Recently, it is my understanding, that you’ve had submitted for Council’s consideration and passage a controversial Zoning Ordinance correct?

Barry Lichty – Yes.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Or a change to an existing ordinance, which has caused a lot of controversy and generated a lot of public interest and attention in the Borough?

Barry Lichty – Yes.

Attorney Peter Nychis – As a matter of fact, it attracted so many citizens to those meetings that you had to move those meetings elsewhere?

Barry Lichty – Yes.

Attorney Peter Nychis - You had as many as 100 or more attend those meetings?
Barry Lichty – Yes.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Now isn’t it true that in the course of those meetings, you have attended those meetings correct?

Barry Lichty – Yes.

Attorney Peter Nychis – In the course of those meetings, isn’t it true that Jeffry Griffith has in fact voiced his public opposition and criticism of the zoning changes during the course of the public hearings or council meetings?

Barry Lichty – Yes.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Do you know that his brother Mark Griffith, who is standing there?

Barry Lichty – Yes.

Attorney Peter Nychis - He also appeared and voiced his opposition to the proposed zoning changes as well during the course of those meetings?

Barry Lichty – Yes.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Is it also your understanding that Mr. Griffith and his brother, Mark Griffith, have also written letters to the Borough expressing his criticism and opposition to the zoning changes?

Barry Lichty – Yes.

Attorney Peter Nychis – It is also my understanding that the Borough Council has moved ahead and in fact did adopt the zoning changes in a zoning ordinance that I believe is numbered 144, is that correct?
Barry Lichty – Yes. 

Attorney Peter Nychis – When was that passed?

Barry Lichty – In June.  I can’t tell you the exact date.
Attorney Peter Nychis – Is it also your understanding that since it was passed, certain citizens within the Borough have filed an appeal or a challenge to that with the Zoning Hearing Board, which is the board or entity that is designated by the Municipalities Planning Code to hear an appeal from a decision of Council regarding zoning, correct?

Barry Lichty – Yes.

Attorney Peter Nychis –As part of that appeal, is it alleged that in the course of the passage of that Ordinance, Council committed certain errors or defects in the passage of that Ordinance?

Barry Lichty – There were some procedural issues.

Attorney Peter Nychis – One of which was that before it was presented or brought before Council for passage of the Ordinance, that it was not submitted to the Planning Commission for its review and recommendations to Council?
Barry Lichty – That was alleged.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Now as I understand, because these allegations have been made, that there were procedural irregularities, Council is now again reconsidering it and trying to in essence fix those errors that were made, correct?
Barry Lichty – We are actually trying to save the Borough Money.  We are trying to eliminate some of these issues so that we don’t have to spend anymore in legal fees.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Mr. Griffith sits on the Planning Commission and you know that he stood in public opposition to those zoning changes and Zoning Ordinance No. 144, correct?

Barry Lichty – Yes.

Attorney Peter Nychis – As I understand, in trying to fix these problems that occurred and that are alleged in this appeal to the Zoning Hearing Board, you have now taken the step in submitting Zoning Ordinance No. 144 to the Planning Commission for its review and consideration, correct?

Barry Lichty – Yes.

Attorney Rullo – Actually it is Ordinance No. 99.  Ordinance 99 is the old ordinance.  144 has been identified as a recodified ordinance.  99 is the ordinance in which there were alleged procedural errors in its amendment.
Attorney Peter Nychis – The next meeting of the Planning Commission, at which time the Planning Commission will meet and undertake its review and make recommendations, if any, back to Council, is next Monday?

Barry Lichty – Yes.

Attorney Peter Nychis – So now you are today moving to remove, in essence, a voice in opposition from the Planning Commission that is scheduled to meet next Monday by moving to remove Mr. Griffith from the Planning Commission, correct?
Barry Lichty – It wasn’t timed that way.  No

Attorney Peter Nychis – Why now?

Barry Lichty – Because of the fact that this is our regular meeting and this is the time that we set up for him to have a public hearing.

Terry St. Clair – We had to have it in 15 days.

Attorney Peter Nychis – I understand that.  But why his removal now?  Why not after the Planning Commission Meets?
Barry Lichty – Because we want the full Planning Commission to meet and because of his lack of attending we aren’t sure that he will be there.  We can appoint somebody that is willing to serve and will be a voice for the community.

Attorney Peter Nychis – He has indicated to you that he is willing to serve.

Barry Lichty – He has told us that before.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Doesn’t his record speak for itself in 2007?  The only 2 meetings that he missed he explained.

Terry St. Clair – I would say 50 percent attendance is not too good of a record.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Who directed the solicitor to send this letter and set these forces in motion for his removal?

Barry Lichty – Council.

Attorney Peter Nychis – When did Council meet to discuss and take this action?

Theresa Weyant - July 11th would be the meeting.

Attorney Peter Nychis - Was this a regular meeting of Council, July 11th?

Barry Lichty – Yes, it was our regular meeting.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Was this done in open session?

Barry Lichty – Yes.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Do we have the minutes of that meeting?

Theresa Weyant – No. I am only on the June 20th meeting.

.

Attorney Rullo – Have you prepared the minutes yet for July?
Theresa Weyant – No.

Attorney Rullo – The tapes would be available if you would like to hear the tapes.

 Attorney Peter Nychis – Do you have notes of that meeting?
Theresa Weyant – Yes.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Could you please read the motion that was made?

Theresa Weyant – Miscoe made a motion to send a letter to Jeff Griffith and Charles Fox regarding their attendance at the Planning Commission Meetings.
Attorney Peter Nychis – Who seconded it?
Theresa Weyant – Walters seconded it.
Attorney Rullo – What was the vote?

Theresa Weyant – All ayes.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Do you have anyone under consideration to replace him?

Barry Lichty – Yes we do.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Was that something that was discussed before Council?
Barry Lichty – Yes.

Attorney Peter Nychis – In other words, before the hearing you decided on his replacement?

Barry Lichty – We always try to do that ahead of time so that we have someone available.  We talk to them before they are appointed.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Are you than saying that you are predisposed to remove him and replace him with this other person you have already decided on?

Barry Lichty – Another person has offered to serve.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Have you approached that person?

Barry Lichty – I haven’t.  No.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Do you know who has?

Barry Lichty – Yes.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Who is that?

Mike Miscoe – I spoke to him.
Attorney Peter Nychis – Mr. Miscoe?

Barry Lichty – Yes.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Was that discussed privately, in Executive Session, or open session?

Barry Lichty –Talking with the individual?

Attorney Peter Nychis – About replacing him with this individual?

Terry St. Clair – He probably came to us well over a year ago offering to serve on any boards or commissions.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Who has officially submitted his name to the Council for replacement of Mr. Griffith?

Barry Lichty – It hasn’t been submitted officially.

Attorney Peter Nychis – How did that come up before Council?

Michael Miscoe – We just verified that he was still willing to serve if a vacancy became available.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Who is that person?

Michael Miscoe – Joe Bucks.

Attorney Rullo – There is no vacancy until the majority of Council votes on the removal of Mr. Griffith

Attorney Peter Nychis – I understand.  The whole point is whether we just went through the motions here.  It is a predisposition to replace him if you have already sought a replacement.
Mayor Lichty – We always have people that volunteer to serve in the event a vacancy comes open.

Attorney Rullo – My letter in December made it clear to Mr. Griffith that there were other individuals that have indicated a willingness to serve.
Attorney Rullo – What assurance can we have in light of the admitted very sporadic attendance in ’05, ’06, and now after assurances, has still had a couple and there may be legitimate reasons for it, but what assurances do we have that there will be an active participation at these meetings?
Jeff Griffith – I received your letter in December and it took some time to make adjustments to my schedule so that I could attend those meetings.  I have done that, I missed those two meetings due to the water line break and a doctor’s appointment, but it just doesn’t happen over night that everything gets changed.  I gave you my assurances that I will attend the meetings if at all possible.  That is all I can do.  For this to happen this quickly after that letter I just think is wrong.  The timing is terrible.

Patricia Dewar – I have been asked to serve on a lot of committees.  I have chosen not to serve on those because I knew that I could not make the meetings.  I knew the timing was wrong and I knew that I could not be there.  I don’t understand that you would chose to be on one of our commission’s knowing that you couldn’t attend a 3:30 meeting.

Jeff Griffith – Actually, I thought I could make most of the 3:30 meetings.  It turned out to be different.  That is why I had to make changes and I have done that.  There were other people involved that had to make changes in their schedule and it took some time to work it out.

Michael Miscoe – The inference made is that this action is being taken specifically to remove Jeff from the Planning Commission based upon the submission of Ordinance 99 to the Planning Commission for its comments.  I should point out that the action authorizing Mr. Rullo to send a letter to Jeff was taken on July 11th.  We did not discuss or even consider addressing any alleged procedural issues with respect to the Ordinance and republishing and going through all that stuff until later.  That occurred at our second meeting in July on the 25th.  I can understand your concern or your inference and it isn’t true.  The reason that this came to the Council’s attention is that Mr. Walters, who also serves on the Planning Commission, has complained to Council repeatedly due to a lack of attendance.  Those complaints have been forwarded to us and our first action occurred in December and we were provided assurances.  A subsequent complaint was made that meetings were still being missed and after seven months, we decided to take action and there were two (2) individuals brought to Council’s attention that were frequently absent from the meetings and action was taken  with respect to both of those individuals.
Attorney Peter Nychis – Who was the other person?

Michael Miscoe – I believe he has been identified as Charles Fox, Jr.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Have you personally reviewed the attendance records of the Planning Commission members?

Michael Miscoe – I have the attendance as reported by our secretary.

Attorney Peter Nychis – I understand that.  My question is have you personally reviewed those records?
Michael Miscoe – I will answer again, I have the attendance records provided by our secretary.  So yes and insofar as that is a record compiled by our secretary I will consider it the official record of Mr. Griffith’s attendance by the secretary.
Attorney Peter Nychis – Let me rephrase.  Have you reviewed the official records of the Borough of the Planning Commission which show
Michael Miscoe – What official record are you referring to?  The meeting minutes?

Attorney Peter Nychis – Yes.

Michael Miscoe – No.

Attorney Peter Nychis – I would say, Mr. Rullo, that the Borough records of the Planning Commission would be the best evidence, not a summary of what someone says is in fact what is in those records.  So those records have not been presented.

Attorney Rullo – Is there anyone else that wants to testify?

William Carney –The timing is terrible for all this change.  My question would be to Jeff, if I was a council member, with this huge issue coming up, I can’t believe he wouldn’t be at all those meetings coming up.  If you thought he was qualified to serve before, and you know that he is going to be there now, I don’t know why we are having this hearing because now he is definitely going to be at all.  His attendance is going to be a hundred percent the rest of the way.  The timing is just terrible, with a major thing coming down the pipe for that commission, why are you changing members on the commission?  I understand the wheels of process started in motion, but he is in the middle of his term, almost finished his term, so why not let the guy finish his term?
Barry Lichty – But what if he doesn’t continue to attend?

Bill Carney – You have to ask yourself in your heart, do you think he is not going to make these meetings?

Terry St. Clair – We thought he was going to attend the first time he was sent a letter.

Michael Miscoe – I am pretty sure that he is going to make the next one.  What I am concern about is the next fourteen meetings after that.

Bill Carney – As I know, and part of public service as well, not a lot goes on in a lot of those meetings.  You say that doesn’t really matter.  If that meeting doesn’t really affect the Borough at that time, you just have a record of something.
Michael Miscoe – The thing of it is, is they don’t know if something is going to be presented to the Planning Commission or not.

Bill Carney – If the problem at hand is that the information is not delved out to the people involved in the committee meetings so that they can actually do some research and think about the issues, if you present things at a meeting, just at the meeting, no one gets to digest it, get educated about it, and they have to make a decision.  There is something wrong with this process.  People have to be informed of a meeting and the topics of a meeting.  You will have a better attendance with that policy in place.  I guarantee you because you will know what is coming down the pike.  Things come out of the wall, that is not a real good way to handle and not a good policy.

Michael Miscoe – Well, I agree and that is something for the Planning Commission to figure out for themselves it is not for the Borough.  If Mr. Griffith had that concern, in any one of these meetings that he attended or didn’t attend, he could have brought that up with the Planning Commission.  Attendance isn’t based upon you cherry picking issues that you think are interesting and so you are going to show up.  Appointment to the Planning Commission is that you show up whether you want to or not, or if it is an issue that you like or you don’t.  The Planning Commission has its own little body that organizes itself and elects leaders within the commission and if they want an agenda the week before, that is something that they should be putting together ahead of time for themselves.
Bill Carney – Well, lets move forward.  You have more information now than you did before the hearing.  Your last letter that you read to him the inference in the letter is that the decision has already been made.

Attorney Rullo – That’s what the Municipalities Planning Code requires.  It say  “any member of a planning commission once qualified and appointed may be removed from office for malfeasance, misfeasance or nonfeasance in office, or for other just cause by a majority vote of the governing body taken after the member has received 15 days’ advance notice of the intent to take such a vote.” 

Attorney Peter Nychis – Theresa Weyant you serve as the Borough Manager and Secretary?

Theresa Weyant – Correct.

Attorney Peter Nychis – You also serve as secretary to the Planning Commission as well?

Theresa Weyant – Correct

Attorney Peter Nychis – You are present during any one of those scheduled meetings of the Planning Commission?

Theresa Weyant – Correct.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Now let me ask you about procedure.  Prior to any meeting of the Planning Commission, have you caused to be prepared and mailed out to any Planning Commission members, a meeting notice.

Theresa Weyant – No.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Have you ever prepared and sent out to the Planning Commission members an agenda for that meeting.
Theresa Weyant – No.

Attorney Peter Nychis – What is the average length to any one of those meetings, for example, in 2007 that you attended?

Theresa Weyant – Two minutes.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Two minutes.  Long enough basically take roll call and move to adjourn because there is no business before the Planning Commission, correct?

Theresa Weyant – Correct.

Attorney Peter Nychis – In 2007, this is post December 15, 2006, letter that was sent by Mr. Rullo to Mr. Griffith, according to what I have heard is, we can agree that he missed two (2) meetings.  He says they are excusable; he has provided reasons why he missed them.  Do you have the minutes of the June 8, 2007 meeting?
Theresa Weyant – I can get them.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Was there any business brought or scheduled before the Planning Commission on that day that you know of?

Theresa Weyant – I don’t believe so.  I would have to refer to the minutes.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Do you want to get the minutes for January 8th and December and June 11th of ‘07?

Attorney Rullo – Let’s let her finish and then she can get it.

Attorney Peter Nychis – How about June 11th?  What is your recollection of that meeting, any business that was brought before the Planning Commission?

Theresa Weyant – I don’t believe so.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Recalling your recollection, during the time that he has served on the Planning Commission, how many times was there actual business brought before the Planning Commission?  Let’s say a developer has some proposal that had to be brought for its review or approval or zoning change.  Do you remember how many times there was actual business brought before the Planning Commission for its consideration and decision?
Theresa Weyant – For how many years back?

Attorney Peter Nychis – Since he has served on the Planning Commission.  Since he has been appointed.
Theresa Weyant – Maybe 8 to 10 times.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Do you know whether or not he missed any of those meeting?

Theresa Weyant – There was one meeting that had to be cancelled, there was somebody who just showed up for the meeting.  They didn’t forewarn anybody they were coming on a matter. They showed up for a meeting and we didn’t have a quorum.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Again, you don’t have a record of who was present and who not present because you don’t maintain attendance records when there is lack of quorum meetings, correct?
Theresa Weyant – Correct.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Is it fair to say, based on what you have told us that his absence from any one of those meeting has not interfered with the business of the Planning Commission because there was nothing scheduled before the Planning Commission, correct?
Theresa Weyant – There was one meeting that we could not conduct business because there was a lack of a quorum.  I don’t know who was here and who wasn’t.
Attorney Peter Nychis – He may have been here; you don’t know?

Theresa Weyant – I don’t know who was here and who wasn’t.
Attorney Peter Nychis – Have you reviewed the attendance records of the Planning Commission members since he has been appointed to serve?

Theresa Weyant – I have reviewed the minutes for his record, which I have presented.

Attorney Peter Nychis – What about the attendance records of other Planning Commission members?

Theresa Weyant – I haven’t been asked to compile a list for those.

Attorney Peter Nychis – You have only been asked to review the attendance records of Mr. Griffith, is that what you are saying?

Theresa Weyant – I prepared this list for tonight’s meeting and I had to review the minutes to get Charlie Fox, Jr.’s record.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Have you been asked to conduct a review of the attendance records of all Planning Commission members before taking this action with respected to Mr. Griffith?
Theresa Weyant – Yes.

Attorney Peter Nychis – You have reviewed the attendance records of all members of the Planning Commission?

Theresa Weyant – Yes.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Now, in 2007, have there been other members who have missed more meetings that Mr. Griffith?
Theresa Weyant – I don’t know how many without going back and compiling a list for each individual like I did with this one because of the hearing tonight.

Attorney Peter Nychis – You can’t say whether or not, based on what you saw, that there were others who may have missed more meetings that Mr. Griffith?

Theresa Weyant – I don’t believe so, no.

Attorney Peter Nychis - But you can’t say for a fact because you don’t have those records in front of you?

Theresa Weyant – I don’t have the records, right.
Attorney Peter Nychis – Do you know how many meetings Mr. Fox missed?

Theresa Weyant – I would say probably five.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Five meetings?

Theresa Weyant – In 2007.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Is there a pending action to remove Mr. Fox from the Planning Commission?

Theresa Weyant – There was a letter sent to Mr. Fox requesting that his absence of meetings and whether or not he wished to remain a member of the commission or submit his resignation.

Attorney Peter Nychis – But no notice of the intent to remove him?

Attorney Rullo – He got the equivalent letter of the December 15th letter.

Attorney Peter Nychis – According to what the Mayor said when he testified, would you agree that there is no established policy that the Borough has regarding attendance of any member of the Planning Commission?
Theresa Weyant – A policy?

Attorney Peter Nychis – Is there established policy regarding attendance?

Theresa Weyant – The policy is if there is a complaint about people not attending, they get sent a letter just like Mr. Griffith and Mr. Fox.
Attorney Peter Nychis – When was that policy adopted by Council?

Theresa Weyant – It is not an adopted policy.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Whose decision is it to take that action against a Planning Commission member?

Theresa Weyant – It is discussed at a Council meeting, and then Council makes a motion.

Attorney Rullo – Does Mr. Griffith suggest there should be a pass for all of the ’05, ’06 meetings ever since the letter where he said that he was going to show?  Is there an explanation, even though he has admitted that he was poorly attending those meetings, should we not consider those at all?  Is that your position?

Attorney Peter Nychis – According to the letter, if that was in fact what the Council decided, was to ask that he, in the future subsequent to that, attend the meetings or make a strong effort to attend the meetings.  He has testified and the record shows that he has done so.  Are you now going to penalize him for what happened before then?

Attorney Rullo – Is he prepared to accept a last chance agreement where, if he misses one meeting, we don’t go through this process again; he’s out?

Attorney Peter Nychis – I am not sure that you can waive procedures.
Attorney Rullo – Well, I am asking you.

Attorney Peter Nychis – No.

Attorney Rullo – You are having a hearing here today.  There will be a vote soon.  He is indicating that he wants to give the assurance that he is going to attend.  We had one assurance like that before.  It seems to me that is a legitimate proposal, that if he is willing to acknowledge that if he misses one more meeting, he will submit a resignation.
Attorney Peter Nychis – If I could privately consult with my client, I can come back with an answer.  What if there is a legitimate reason for missing the meeting?  

Attorney Rullo – I think that there can be all kinds of extenuating circumstances.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Exactly.  Then you can’t offer a reason for missing a meeting.

Attorney Rullo – They are going to have the vote.  It just seems to me that, for any business to be conducted, whether it’s something like this that is pending now where there is advisory recommendations or not, at a minimum, there should be notification of the inability to attend a meeting, so that if others are intending to attend, and they realize there is either not going to be a quorum or other people attending to present something, they can be alerted to that in advance.

Attorney Peter Nychis – I don’t disagree with you.

Attorney Rullo – Under either one of these circumstances, as far as I know, there was no effort to even submit a notification in advance of an extenuating circumstance.  He just didn’t show.

Jeff Griffith – Not true.  I did on the one she mentioned.

Theresa Weyant – The January 8th one he did call and say he had to be in Harrisburg.

Jeff Griffith – No.  It was Hillcrest.

Theresa Weyant – June, no call.

Attorney Rullo – June is a doctor’s appointment.

Attorney Peter Nychis – Why not at a minimum, whether it is Planning Commission or Zoning Hearing Board, if you can’t make the meeting for some reason or another, notify the Borough Secretary.  There was no such established policy or practice.

Attorney Rullo – The Planning Commission can establish their own rules and regulations.  If they want to have an agenda ahead of time, establish rules and regulations about notifications, they are their own body that can set their own policies and procedures.  When somebody is appointed to a position that requires a diligent effort to perform the duties, they expect those individuals to do that.  His term runs till December 31, 2008.  I am showing over 9 to 11 times that meetings have been missed.  If you want to talk to your counsel, fine.  What assurance can you give us that we are not going to sit here two months from now and have the same situation that I got new information that came up because something else occurred?  Give us some assurance so we can have that as part of our deliberation.
Robert Weitzel – As Chairman of the Planning Commission, Jeff has become a valued and a contributing member of the Planning Commission.  I ask that he be permitted to serve out his term.

Attorney Rullo – Did you hear some of the comments we had establishing your own policies and rules and regulations about attendance?

Robert Weitzel – I have.

Attorney Rullo – Is that something you believe you should consider, about implementing something about your own governing body.

Robert Weitzel – Perhaps so.

Attorney Rullo – Establishing some kind of agenda ahead of time or giving people at least some advanced notice as to what is going to be discussed, because if there is no business to be conducted, you may be able to postpone a meeting if it is not necessary, rather than schedule a two-minute meeting.

Robert Weitzel – I have noted what has been said.

Attorney Rullo – What is your position on a last chance arrangement?  If he indicates that he is willing to give us an assurance that if he misses another meeting, he will submit a resignation.  An unauthorized meeting.

Robert Weitzel – I really can’t comment about that.  That would be for you and Jeff.

Robert Vogel – I think that Jeff is very sincere in what he is saying that he will make meetings.  The Planning Commission will henceforth establish a procedure for attendance.  I can assure you right now that if a member, regardless of whether it is Jeff or anybody else, misses a number of meetings for no good reason, the Planning Commission will recommend to Council for his removal.  I don’t think you have to have another meeting like this.  There is no agenda for the Planning Commission.  The Planning Commission acts on business that is brought before the commission.  We have no way of setting an agenda.  
Robert Vogel – I just learned about Mr. Fox’s resignation, so now, at this point, 40 percent of the Commission is going to be replaced.  I don’t think that is something that you should be forcing upon the Planning Commission.  It is going to take these people, if you decide to appoint two new people, time to get familiar with everything that has been going on, to get familiar with the Code, the Municipal Code as well as the Code here at the Lake.  To ask two brand new people to come in here and sit down at a meeting on Monday and make a decision is virtually impossible.
Robert Vogel – I would ask Council to use your good sense to delay, to let Jeff stay on the Commission, so that we only have to deal with one person who does not know what is going on instead of two.  I would ask you to vote to take Jeff at his word.  I think he is sincere.  I think he will attend meetings.  Let him stay on the Commission, at least for the rest of his term, unless more nonfeasance occurs, and then I guarantee you, you won’t have to have this meeting.  The Planning Commission will do it for you.

Attorney Rullo – Unfortunately this is required.

Robert Vogel – Then it is going to be a recommendation of the Planning Commission.

Patricia Dewar – You said that you have no agenda because you don’t know if someone is going to present something.

Robert Vogel – Yes.

Patricia Dewar – Do you mean, when you have a meeting, someone just shows up?

Robert Vogel – That has happened in the past.

Patricia Dewar – You have no indication whatsoever?

Robert Vogel – Sometimes there is an indication, and notification will be sent out from the Borough that there is a particular subject that somebody is appearing for.  Other than that, we have no agenda.  We have no way of setting an agenda.

Jeff Griffith – That could be required.  We could require advance notice.

Robert Vogel – Yes we could require it.

Patricia Dewar – That is a terrible way to run an organization.

Robert Vogel – I agree.

Charlie McCauley – I understand that some of these dates are questionable.  Are you telling me that you, as a member of this board, are willing to accept these as, well, ho-hum?
Robert Vogel – No.  No, I am not.  I think that is serious.  As I said before, his heart is in the right place now, he knows what is required, he will perform the duties that are expected of him.  If he doesn’t, the Planning Commission will make the recommendation.  You don’t need to.

Charles McCauley – How would you, as a member of the board, accept our attorney’s question about the right of first refusal?
Attorney Rullo – It is like a last chance agreement of some sort.

Robert Vogel- If your last chance does not entail a valid reason for missing a meeting; I would not have a problem with it.

Attorney Rullo – The real argument there is, who defines what valid reason is?
Robert Vogel – We can talk about this in the Commission and set up some guidelines.  I would say death in the family, doctor’s appointments, the water main break; I think they are all legitimate reasons.  We can set up some parameters.  I would be willing to go along with it if it is outside the parameters that are being set.

Barry Lichty – Do you think that there have been other abuses by other people in neglecting their responsibilities in attending meetings?

Robert Vogel – There have been.  I have got to go back to probably 2002, 2003, somewhere around there and yes, there have been.  Nothing was ever done about it.  I think it is water under the bridge.  I can tell you right now, I know a member that was on the Commission early 2000’s that missed five meetings in a row because he was south.  Nothing happened.

Barry Lichty – That is okay as long as it is an excused absence.  According to the Borough Code, a Borough Councilmen can miss more that two meetings as long as it is authorized by the President of the Council.

Robert Vogel – All right.  No argument there.  Unexcused, a few far and few between.

Michael Miscoe – We have five people on the board, right?

Patricia Dewar – Yes.

Michael Miscoe – I think they are pretty much all here, aren’t they?

Patricia Dewar – Why wouldn’t the Commission police themselves?  How can you function if you don’t even have a quorum or you don’t have people coming?  I just don’t understand that.

Robert Vogel – I have been on the Commission I think since 2000.  That is the way it has always functioned.

Patricia Dewar – It doesn’t make it right though.

Robert Vogel – It doesn’t make it right, that is the way it has been, and maybe a bad situation has just been carried on.  That was the process before I came on and it was handled the same way.

Attorney Rullo – As far as the excused absences, if we would do something like a last chance, the issue of who excuses the absence should not come to Council on every occasion.
Robert Vogel – Okay.

Attorney Rullo – Would the Commission be prepared to act on an excuse to determine if it is excused or not?

Robert Vogel – Yes.

Attorney Rullo – If you determine by majority vote that the absence is not excused, his resignation will be triggered?

Robert Vogel – I think that would be perfectly plausible.

John Walters – I think you better go back to the Planning Commission and get a vote on that.

Attorney Rullo – The hard part of reaching any agreement like that is trying to define in advance what an excused absence is.

John Walters – What would you consider the defined excuse?  If he just doesn’t show up and a week later he says he had a doctor’s appointment.

Robert Vogel – No.  When we sit down to make these rules, they have to notify Theresa or the chairman that they are unable to make the meeting and give a reason for it.  When we sit down to make these excused absences, we have to list what they are by the majority of the Planning Commission.  If they are one of the excused absences, that is fine, if not, then last chance, I don’t have a problem with that.

John Walters – I don’t have a problem with that.

Attorney Rullo – Maybe if we can take a recess and you can talk to your client.  We will continue with some business, and then come back to it, if that is all right with counsel.

Recess taken at 9:07 P.M.

5.
Legal Report:

A.
Update on Zoning Violations for Karl Ocepek – Dewar made a motion to authorize Dean Snyder, Zoning Officer, to send a letter to Mr. and Mrs. Ocepek relative to the nuisance abatement of the boathouse .  Miscoe seconded the motion.  All ayes, motion carried.
 6.
Correspondence:

A.  Raymond & Debra Sobina – Requesting Relief of the $10.00 Late Fee on their Sewage Maintenance Bill – Mr. and Mrs. Sobina is requesting relief from paying the $10.00 late fee on their sewage maintenance bill.  They are not willing to pay a late fee for a fee that they are paying for future work.  They feel that they should be entitled to interest on any money that is paid into their account in advance for any future work.  Bozovich questioned the Manager to explain what the procedure is for this billing.  Residents are given 45 days to pay the sewage maintenance fee.  If the fee is not paid within the 45 days, there will be a $10.00 late fee assessed and an additional 30 days will be given to pay.  If not paid within the 30 days a $35.00 delinquent notice and police posting fee will be assessed along with a water termination date for non-payment.  If water needs to be turned off for non-payment there will be a $25.00 turn-off fee along with a $25.00 turn-on fee.  Miscoe made a motion to authorize the Borough Manager to send a letter to Mr. and Mrs. Sobina informing them that the Borough is denying the request for relief of the $10.00 late fee on their sewage maintenance bill.  Manager should send them a copy of the minutes which shows what the established policy of the Borough is on this issue.  McCauley seconded the motion.  All ayes, motion carried.

Attorney Rullo disclosed that Mr. and Mrs. Sobina are clients of his and that he would need to recuse himself on any issues.

9:17 P.M. the public hearing reconvened.

Attorney Rullo – Mr. Griffith and his counsel have discussed the possibility of reaching a resolution of this matter short of the board taking action to vote on removal.  It centers upon what I suggested, was a last chance proposal, such that if Mr. Griffith misses a future meeting in which his own Planning Commission deems the absence was unexcused, that he will voluntarily submit a resignation and waive any future hearings or notices necessary under the Municipalities Planning Code.


Attorney Rullo – The Planning Commission would do exactly what you have asked them to do, and that is, police themselves to that extent.  They would have to make the determination, for whatever reason an absence occurs, was it an excused absence or not.  It does not mean ultimately if they do not keep their responsibilities, that we abrogate our responsibilities to still do what we may need to do.  This just gives Mr. Griffith the opportunity to prove to both Council and to the Commission that he intends to honor his word.  If that is acceptable, we would adjourn this meeting and accept that as a recommendation, as long as Mr. Griffith puts on the record his concurrence with that.

Michael Miscoe – I have no doubt that, for the meeting that is coming up in a couple of days, and as long as the zoning issue may be before the Planning Commission, that Jeff is going to be involved.  He has expressed great interest in that issue and his input was valuable and incorporated into the zoning ordinance.  It is all the meetings after that that I am concerned about, because there is obvious interest in this issue, but when that interest goes away, is there going to be a continued interest in all the other mundane issues?


Attorney Rullo – My response to that simply is that we are taking the Planning Commission at their word that they are going to police themselves.  If it is not an excused absence, then he will submit a resignation.  This does not abrogate your responsibilities either, if you believe that they are not acting, you still have the ability to schedule a meeting and hearing like we have just done here in the future.  It is your call.  You have the ability to vote tonight, or if you want to simply accept this as a resolution, we will need to have an agreement here by Council and agreement by Mr. Griffith that can be implemented. 


Terry St. Clair – I think it is a real insult to the Borough for all the meetings that have been missed.  Unexcusable.  My personal opinion, I don’t think things are going to change, other that he will definitely be there for the next meeting.  I don’t think he has the will, the good will of the Borough at heart.  We have other people waiting that really do want to serve and attend.

Charlie McCauley – I honestly don’t enjoy doing this.  You really have less than a glamorous record in the past.  What kind of assurances can you say, I give you my word I am going to be there under the best of conditions?


Jeff Griffith – That is all I can tell you.  I didn’t do that in the past, I agree.  After the letter, yes I had to change some things, and I did.    I agree that if I have an unexcused absence, and they deem it unexcused, fine, my resignation, you got it.


Attorney Peter Nychis – That is on the record.


P. Scott Moore – I don’t think you can ask for anything more than that.


Patricia Dewar – If they are policing themselves, can we have a copy of what their intent is, how they are going to set it up?


Robert Vogel – It will be in the minutes.


Mark Griffith – We can provide it.  You serve them.


Robert Vogel – Sure. Absolutely.


Michael Miscoe – When someone’s ability to serve the public once they have been appointed requires a cattle prod, I mean, where we would have to send a letter to remind somebody of the commitment that they made, and then only at that point in time that they make an effort to amend their schedule, you know.  I have no doubt he has a commitment to this one issue, but beyond that, I don’t have a whole lot of confidence.


Terry St. Clair – I firmly believe, Zoning Hearing Board, Planning Commission, has nothing to do with personalities, these people have to attend.  Somebody that has missed this many meetings it is unexcusable.

Jeff Griffith – We have that and I miss one more, I am gone.  I don’t know what else I can do.


Michael Miscoe – It is kind of where we were at in December.  That is why we sent a letter, and you recommitted, and you did miss a few.

Jeff Griffith – Those were excusable.


Terry St. Clair – As far as I am concerned, you just proved that the Planning Commission to you is unimportant and to me, that is unexcusable.


Jeff Griffith – I don’t agree with that.


Bryan Bozovich – Is this issue going to arise in the next two years that you are interested in actually sitting through those meetings?


Jeff Griffith – I had to change schedules and I think I have explained that.  It was harder for me to get there than I anticipated.


Bryan Bozovich – The scheduling issue over the last two years, you missed half of the meetings in ’05 and forty percent of the meetings in ’06.  The letter was sent out to you and you missed 20 to 30 percent of the meetings in ’07.  The trend never actually changed from ’05 to the point in which we are sitting here now.  My concern would be that your true interest is serving on the Planning Commission, not actually one or two issues that may be at hand at this point.

Jeff Griffith – I think I have already stated it.


Bryan Bozovich – As far as policing, that is a great policy to move forward, but the problem that I have is it is a policy that is now being developed after somebody misses nine to eleven meetings.  To say that the first ten meetings that you missed, that wasn’t a problem, but the very next one that you miss will be a problem.  

Attorney Peter Nychis – I think it is a good first step.  Sometimes you need this in order to effectuate change.


Barry Lichty – It is unfortunate that we have to get to this point.  When you take an appointment or you run for an election, you accept the responsibilities of sitting here for four and five hours two times a month.  That was something that you have agreed to.  Everyone of these people have accepted that responsibility.  Just like we talked about the Zoning Hearing Board, when there is a zoning hearing scheduled, they are responsibilities associated with that.  If those people didn’t show up, then there would be a major problem, because we pay for a court reported and there are people here to testify.  Fortunately, we have a group of people on our Zoning Hearing Board that have showed the courtesy of calling when they can’t attend so that the alternate can be contacted and attend so that we have a quorum.  That is the thing that I don’t understand.


Barry Lichty – I have been an elected official for 29 years.  There is only two to three instances where I have had to deal with a situation like this.  I don’t like it any better than any one of these people.

Terry St. Clair – No, this is nothing we really want to do.


Barry Lichty – My only interest is doing what is in the best interest of the community.  That is why I serve.  I don’t get paid.  The only gratitude I get is knowing that what I am doing is in the best interest of the community.  That is what I asked of Jeff when I asked him if he would take the appointment to the Planning Commission, to do something that was in the best interest of the community.  When I saw this attendance record, it was very disturbing.  Most people that accept these positions do it because they want to do something that is positive for the community.  That is why we are here tonight.  Not because we want to do this and not because we feel good about doing this.  We are trying to get somebody in a position that is willing to say, okay, I am going to do something for my community.

Attorney Rullo – On December 15th, you authorized me to write a letter that said it is the desire of Borough Council to have you continue to serve in this roll so long as you are willing to provide the time and attention to the responsibilities of the office.  Is that still your position?  If he is willing to provide the time and attention to the responsibilities of the office,  is it still the desire to have him serve in this role?


Terry St. Clair – My personal opinion is that he has already proven that he is not willing to spend the time.


Attorney Rullo – That seems to be the issue that you need to decide.


P. Scott Moore – Terry, I disagree with you, because in all the meetings, he has only two excused absences, and they are excused.  He had a legitimate reason, so in reality, he hasn’t missed any meetings.


Michael Miscoe – The water line break that happens and that was the one that you called about.  The doctor’s appointment, you knew apparently months in advance but that one was the one that you could have most obviously called.


P. Scott Moore – So he screwed up once out of six times.  He was wrong as admitted it.


Terry St. Clair – Accepting a position on the Commission was wrong, when he knew he could not attend those meetings, he should never have accepted the position.

P. Scott Moore – Two of his peers, the chairman and vice chairman of the Planning Commission want to keep him there.  We have to take that into account.


Terry St. Clair – I am taking that into account.  I respect the other two gentlemen.  People that do not attend meetings, I do not respect.


Attorney Rullo – We need to bring this to a vote, one way or the other.  Majority vote would be, if there is a motion to remove him, it would be done by a majority vote.  If there needs to be a motion to approve the agreement on the last chance, that needs to be by a majority vote.


Miscoe made a motion to remove.  St. Clair seconded the motion.  Roll call vote taken.


Patricia Dewar – No



Bryan Bozovich – Aye



John Walters – Aye



Scott Moore – No



Charles McCauley – No



Michael Miscoe – Aye



Terry St. Clair – Aye


Vote is 4 ayes and 3 nayes.  Motion’s approved to remove Jeff from the Planning Commission.


Attorney Rullo – Mr. Griffith’s term would have expired on December 31, 2008.  Any appointment to fill the vacancy created by the removal is only for the unexpired term.


Miscoe made a motion to nominate Joe Bucks to serve the remainder of the term, term expiring December 31, 2008.  Bozovich seconded the motion.  6 ayes and 1 naye.  Motion carried.

Hearing was adjourned at 9:32 P.M. Council returned to regular session

.
6.
Correspondence continued:

B.
Charles E. Fox-Resignation from Planning Commission – Charles E. Fox has submitted his resignation from the Indian Lake Borough Planning Commission.  Unfortunately, the current meeting schedule of the Planning Commission makes it necessary for me to take formal leave from work in order to attend meetings.  As my responsibilities for the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania grow this is becoming increasingly difficult to manage.  Dewar made a motion to accept his resignation.  Miscoe seconded the motion.  All ayes, motion carried.



McCauley made a motion to appoint Charles Fox, Sr. to serve the remainder of the term, term expiring December 31, 2010.  Walters seconded the motion.  All ayes, motion carried.


7.
Committee Reports:


A.
Finance Report:


1.
Joseph Scansaroli-2007 Auditing Proposal – Dewar made a motion to appoint Joseph Scansaroli, Certified Public Accountant, as the auditing firm for Indian Lake Borough for the year 2007.  Miscoe seconded the motion.  All ayes, motion carried.


B.
Police Report



1.
Increasing the Number of Secondary Non-Powered Boat Licenses – Miscoe made a motion to allow 10 additional secondary non-powered boat licenses (335 to 345).  Dewar seconded the motion.  All ayes, motion carried.



2. 
Police Services to the Flight 93 Memorial – Attorney Rullo reported that a proposal was submitted.  The only hang up seems to be with the Stonycreek Township Supervisors and the Intermunicipal Agreement.    They want to limit the police powers only to those areas within the municipal limits as it pertains to the crash site and for the routes from the Borough to the site.




That was never the Borough’s intention to provide police services to Stonycreek Township.  The Borough is only willing to provide police services to the memorial site.  The Pennsylvania State Police should remain the primary provider for the police services for Stonycreek Township and remain the primary contact when police services are required, except for the lands designated by the National Park Service encompassing the National Park.




Attorney Rullo noted that the families of Flight 93 are perfectly happy with the Borough’s proposal.


C.
Sewer Report:



1.
The EADS Group-Engineering Proposal on Proposed Sewage Treatment Plant Expansion – Bozovich made a motion to proceed with the planning process for the expansion of the Lakewood Sewage Treatment Plant and to accept the proposal from The EADS Group for Phase 1 at a cost not to exceed $3,000.00.  Dewar seconded the motion.  All ayes, motion carried.

E.
Zoning Report:


1.
July Report of Building Permits Issued – Manager provided each council member with the July Building Permit Report.
8.
Old Business:  None.
9.
New Business:  None.

At 10:25 P.M. an Executive Session was held to discuss potential litigation.

At 11:08 P.M. Council returned to Regular Session.


McCauley made a motion to authorize Attorney Rullo to prepare an easement to permit commercial docks over the water adjacent to the C-R Zone, authorize the officials to sign the necessary documents and to authorize Attorney Rullo to record it.  Miscoe seconded the motion.  6 ayes and 1 abstention.  Motion carried.  St. Clair filed the abstention memorandum with the Borough Manager.

With no further business to discuss, Moore moved and Bozovich seconded to adjourn the meeting at 11:15 P.M.  All ayes, motion carried.


The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Indian Lake Borough Council will be held on August 29, 2007 at 7:00 P.M. at the Indian Lake Borough Building.

Respectfully submitted,

Theresa L. Weyant

Borough Manager
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